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This addendum is issued to clarify questions received by the Hampton Roads Planning District 
Commission (HRPDC) pertaining to Request for Proposal (RFP) No. ENV ED-RFP-2018-01. 
 

1) Whether companies from Outside USA can apply for this?  
(like,from India or Canada)  
Our preference would be a consultant with a local presence as we prefer in-person 
meetings. 
 

2) Whether we need to come over there for meetings?  
Our preference would be a consultant with a local presence as we prefer in-person 
meetings. 
 

3) Can we perform the tasks (related to RFP) outside USA? 
(like, from India or Canada) 
Our preference would be a consultant with a local presence as we prefer in-person 
meetings. 
 

4) Can we submit the proposals via email? 
yes 
 

5) Who are the key administrators of this program?  
HRPDC staff will oversee the contract and provide overall H2O program coordination 
and administration. 
 

6) Is it fully independent or are a number of stakeholders still managing different pieces 
of the program?  For example, what is the current role of the Salvation Army in the 
H2O program?  
HRPDC staff handle program coordination and administration, HRSD staff manage 
donations and customer payments, staff from the local Salvation Army Commands 
manage the client screening and application process. Utility staff from the local 
jurisdictions support the program by referring customers and verifying 
account/balance information during the application process. 
 

7) What is the role of HRPDC Public Information & Community Affairs staff?  
HRPDC staff will oversee the contract and provide overall H2O program coordination 
and administration. 
 

8) Are there other key persons involved in the management of this nonprofit (H2O)? 
HRPDC staff handle program coordination and administration, HRSD staff manage 
donations and customer payments, staff from the local Salvation Army Commands 
manage the client screening and application process. Utility staff from the local 
jurisdictions support the program by referring customers and verifying 
account/balance information during the application process. 
 



9) If it is independently run, how many staff are involved in the running of H20? Do they 
have a Board of Directors? If so how many people are on the board? 
Primarily 2 staff members with HRPDC and 2-3 staff members of HRSD run the 
program while various staff at the six Salvation Army commands in Hampton Roads 
manage the client screening process. There is an H2O Board of Directors which 
consists of the Directors of Utilities from the 16 localities in Hampton Roads and the 
General Manager of HRSD, for a total of 17 directors. 
 

10) Are you looking for support to your website (www.hrpdcva.gov) to add more pages 
for the H2O program or are you looking for a stand-alone website that would have a 
link from your page to that website like the www.askhrgreen.org website (Attachment 
2: Scope of  Work ‘website development for the program which incorporates online 
donations)? 
We’re looking for a stand-alone web presence, not to add more pages to the HRPDC 
site for the H2O program. 
 

11) Is there a cost maximum or contract amount that HRPDC has in mind for this 
proposal? 
The budget range for this project is approximately $50K-$60K. 
 

12) The last sentence of the first paragraph on page 25 of the RFP states, “A SWaM or DBE 
must perform or exercise responsibility for at least 30% of the total cost of the 
contract with its own force.” It was mentioned on page 26 under section II -DBE 
Contract Goal that there is a 10% DBE participation Goal for this contract. Please 
explain the different in these two percentages. 
The 10% goal on page 26 is for the entire contract. The 30% on page 25 refers to 30% 
of each sub-contractors portion must be performed in house. 
 

13) In Attachment II: Scope of Work under section entitled Proposal Requirements bullet 
#2 on page 59 you make the following statement, “The proposed approach to working 
with the HRPDC, participating jurisdictions, the Hampton Roads Sanitation District, 
and other agencies, as appropriate.” What role does the Hampton Roads Sanitation 
District and the 15 jurisdictions (listed on page 4) play in the H2O program? Do they do 
marketing? Do they manage applications? Etc. 
HRPDC staff handle program coordination and administration, HRSD staff manage 
donations and customer payments, staff from the Salvation Army Commands manage 
the client screening and application process. Utility staff from the local jurisdictions 
support the program by referring customers and verifying account/balance 
information during the application process. 
 

14) Who will be the key liaison for this project? Meaning which agencies and which staff? 
Are there certain individuals that will be responsible for working with the consultant 
from the various entities involved in H2O? 



HRPDC staff will oversee the contract and provide overall program coordination and 
administration. 
 

15) Could you please clarify if SCC id is mandatory at the time of application or could it be 
possible to have SCC ID before contract award or after shortlisted by Evaluation 
Committee? 
The SCC can be provided after you have been shortlisted.  Please indicate that you 
have applied for an SCC ID in the Proposal 
 

16) What is the budget? Even a range would be helpful. 
The budget range for this project is approximately $50K-$60K. 
 

17) Do you want ongoing research and planning throughout the contract or just initially? 
That is TBD. We would like to hear your ideas on what research may be needed 
and/or feasible given the overall program budget. 
 

18) Do they want a stand alone website designed and developed or is it going to be 
integrated into the larger website like it is currently?  
We’re looking for a stand-alone web presence, not to add more pages to the HRPDC 
site for the H2O program. 
 

19) Do you want ongoing website support, posts updates? 
We want a website that uses a platform that we could update ourselves for basic 
content updates vs. having a developer make any and all web updates.  
 

20) Do you want ongoing social media planning, creation, posting and response to online 
comments, etc. in this contract?  
We would like to develop an initial social media strategy that we could maintain 
ourselves in time. We would expect to respond to comments online ourselves. 
 

21) Approximately how many meetings would be required? On phone or in person? 
That is TBD. We would expect an initial kickoff meeting and at least a few follow-up 
meetings as the project unfolds. Our preference would be in-person meetings 
primarily. 
 

22) Do you have a general budget in mind? 
The budget range for this project is approximately $50K-$60K. 
 

23) Is there a media planning or buying part of the contract? 
We are open to suggestions given the budget. 
 

24) Will RFP responders need a Hampton Roads physical presence? 
That would be our preference, but is not required. 
 



25) Is a SWaM company considered a DBE? 
No, SWaM is a state designation where DBE is a federal designation. 
 

26) It seems to be difficult to contact DBE’s or any vendor, before the research and actual 
specific work has been defined.  Could the list be a prospective contact list with the 
intent to use said vendor should the need present itself? 
Yes, you can list prospective DBE’s. 
 

27) In considering fundraising, will we be required to actually do the fundraising or to just 
furnish support materials? 
We are looking for fundraising support, rebranding the H2O Program and associated 
materials and development of more effective and comprehensive fundraising 
strategies. HRPDC staff can implement strategies independently or with assistance 
from outside vendors. We are open to any and all options. 
 

28) Does the rebranding require a new logo, new tagline, new style guide, new stock 
photography? 
Yes, new logo/tagline/style guide but our preference would be to keep the 
shareH2O.org URL. 
 

29)  What specific printed collateral, signage, forms, etc. would be required to be 
redesigned? 
Currently we have rack cards and bangtail donation envelopes that would need to be 
updated if we are to continue using those materials. 
 

30) Can you include all the website URLs needing development for online donations? 
Which specific website properties need attention? Do you have a list of user / visitor 
requirements? 
The shareH2O.org URL – right now this points to a page on the HRPDC website which 
then links to a donation page on the HRSD website. We’d like the URL to be a 
standalone website for program info and donations. 
 

31) Is there a current Communications plan? Would this be supplied at the project kickoff? 
Is there anything missing from this plan that would make Hampton Roads’ marketing 
more effective? 
There is not currently a comprehensive communications plan for this program. 
 

32) When was the last time a comprehensive Communications Audit was performed? 
Would you like us to bid on providing this deliverable? 
There has never been a communications audit performed for this program. If you 
would like to bid on this deliverable, please do so as a separate line item. 
 



33) Can you be more specific about which type of program materials you would like 
graphic design services? E-flyer, e-blast, landing page for website, social media 
creative, etc.? 
We are looking for graphic design services for all creative aspects of the H2O program 
rebranding initiative: website, bill stuffers/donation envelopes, social media, etc. The 
selected vendor may recommend new program materials or communications 
opportunities as part of their fundraising strategy. 
 

34) Fundraising / sponsorship development, do you have a prospectus or guide for all of 
the current opportunities? What would be on your wish list for marketing 
communications to support this effort? 
The only fundraising efforts currently underway are bi-annual bill stuffers (donation 
envelopes inserted into utility customer bills) and social media/online referrals. The 
selected vendor may recommend new program materials or communications 
opportunities as part of their fundraising strategy. 
 

35) Do you have a current social media strategy? Social media calendar? Which social 
media properties would be affected e.g. Facebook accounts, Instagram, YouTube, 
Twitter, etc.? 
No social media strategy or calendar is currently being employed. To date, only a 
Facebook account has been established for the program. 
 


